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Responses to RFI Questions Submitted 
 

OPM’s General Response to Questions:  As described in the RFI, OPM’s goal for the RFI is to help 
determine what automated solutions and overall approaches might exist or could be developed to make 
the purchase of service (POS) health and human services contracting processes more efficient and 
accountable for state agencies and private providers.   The State is also seeking information as to 
implementation approaches related to these proposed solutions.  A number of the questions submitted 
seek details about our existing processes or specifics about what we are seeking in a potential solution.  
A number of these details and specifics are provided in the RFI and its appendices.  More detailed 
information about state agency business processes and staffing, along with the electronic budget 
workbook, is also available, as indicated in the RFI, on OPM’s website.  In some cases, the additional 
details being sought would need to be determined through the procurement process or during 
implementation.  Also, while the State has identified certain business requirements and goals for the 
system, we are also seeking to learn about the best practices reflected in proposed solutions that vendors 
or firms have to offer.   
 
For questions not addressed through the information in the RFI or on our OPM’s website and for which 
we are capable of providing a response at this stage of the process, we have provided specific responses. 
When the information is addressed by the RFI and/or this General Response, we have responded:  See 
RFI and General Response.  
 
RFI PROCESS QUESTIONS 
 

1. Have you worked with a Partner/ Vendor on the development of this RFI?   
 
OPM Response: An individual consultant assisted OPM with developing initial business 
requirements and reviewing the market to determine the types of solutions that may be available, 
which work is reflected in the RFI.  This consultant’s assignment has been completed. 
 

2. Have you evaluated any particular solutions prior to this RFI? Ex. Microsoft CRM? If so, which 
partner did you work with?  
 
OPM Response: We have identified, but not evaluated, some, but likely not all, of the potential 
solutions. 

 
3. Is there an approved budget for this project? If so has that amount been determined?  

 
OPM Response:  No. The RFI hopefully will give us a stronger basis for making a cost estimate. 

 
4. What is the timeline for the implementation of the new solution?  

 
OPM Response:  It will depend on the solution and the implementation approach recommended 
and adopted by the State.  We are anxious to get started with the procurement and subsequent 
implementation process. 
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5. Are there resource availability or other internal constraints that we should factor into our 
implementation or maintenance approach?  
 
OPM Response:  In the RFI, we have asked vendors or firms to estimate the type or level or 
resources, external and internal, that we should plan for or will need going forward. 

 
6. Are bidder questions envisioned to be received via e-mail, posted as documents, or submitted via an 

electronic form (Appendix 1, Section C)? 
 
OPM Response: The Appendix lists the desired business requirements, but we will be seeking what 
potential solutions offer in this regard  

 
7. Please define “lead through process” (Appendix 1, Section C) .   

 
OPM Response: Generally refers to a business process flow. 
 

8. Please clarify “business intelligence” as defined here (Appendix 1, Section D).   
 
OPM Response: Business Intelligence is the ability to extract certain information or create reports 
from transactional data entered into system. 
 

9. Please clarify what “Cognizant State Agency” means (Appendix 2, Section I).  
 
OPM Response:  The State agency that is the party to the contract with the provider that is 
receiving funds from and providing services to the State. 
 

10. Is there a prescribed version of spreadsheet software that can be assumed (e.g., Excel version 2010 
or higher) (Appendix 1, Section D)? 
 
OPM Response:  We would work with selected vendors on the prescribed version regarding software. 
 

11. Please provide general overview on the relationship(s) between each of the 10 agencies and how each of 
the A-I processes are similar and/or different, how they are connected across agencies. 
 
OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response.  Also, as stated in the RFI, “The State is seeking an 
automated web-based system, with interactive capability to efficiently handle a common business flow 
across all the agencies, knowing that some adaptation of this common flow will be required to meet 
the particular needs of individual agencies. (emphasis added).”  The State is seeking to create an 
enterprise contract management system for health and human service contracts. 

 
12. Please provide more detail as to how each agency consists of Program Units, Central Contracts 

Unit, and the Fiscal and Budget Office.   
 
OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response. 
 

13. Please provide more detail on Part I and Part II of a contract and how a contract “packet” or “file” 
is built throughout the process.   
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OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response 
 

14. Explain your definition of "web-based"? Hosted (SaaS) or a locally installed, client-server 
application with a web-interface for user and administration functions?   
OPM Response:  This is a question for the vendors to answer as they present their solution.   
 

15. Explain/Clarify "web‐based interactive contract management system"? (Page  4)  
 
OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response 
 

16. Elaborate on the "Uniform Chart of Accounts (UCOA) and an electronic financial management 
workbook?" Integration? Requirements? Standards? (Page 4)  
 
OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response 
 

17. How do they envision "Creating or collecting documents in a more efficient manner"? Scanning? 
DPC-type environment? eForms? Emails?  

 

OPM Response:  This is a question for the vendors to answer as they present potential solutions.   
 

CURRENT SYSTEMS 
 

18. Can you provide more details around the existing system architecture? 
 
OPM Response:  We are looking to create an enterprise contract management system. Such an 
enterprise system is not in place now. 
 

19. What is your current Accounting / Budgeting system?  
 
OPM Response:  The State’s integrated financial management and human resource/payroll system 
is a PeopleSoft product called Core-CT.  The State does not use the PeopleSoft statewide budget 
module.  Many Purchase of Service (POS) health and human service contracts use the UCOA 
electronic workbook described in the RFI.  The level of detail in the workbook is not included in 
Core-CT.   
 

20. What are the current technology platforms (and versions of same) in standard use at OPM and HHS 
agencies? Software: Desktop operating systems, Office productivity systems, e-mail system, web 
browsers. Hardware: Standardized mobile platforms, or just PCs?  
 
OPM Response: Generally OPM and the HHS agencies use the following as part of the statewide 
standards:  Desktop OS: Windows 7 Professional; Office Productivity systems: Office 2010/2013; E-
Mail System: Exchange 2010/2013; Web Browser: Internet Explorer 9/10/11 
 

21.  Are all of the agencies in scope of the solution on the same domain? If not, please describe the 
trusts among the OMP and HHS agency domains.  
 
OPM Response: Yes, there is a single domain for OPM and all HHS agencies.  
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22. What is OPM’s current electronic approval process/tool (Appendix 1, Section B)?  

 
OPM Response: It is as described in the RFI.  It was designed by OPM and is hosted, through a 
contract with OPM, by an outside vendor. 
 

BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS ISSUES/QUESTIONS 
 

23. Please advise which systems our solution will either need to 1. Integrate with and / or 2. Replace? 
 
OPM Response:  We are seeking interfaces with Core-CT as described in the RFI.  The system will 
replace or, in some cases need to integrate with, existing systems. 
 

24. Will the budgeting remain in the current system and just integrate with the new solution?  
 
OPM Response:  The UCOA electronic workbook referred to in the RFI could be potentially be 
integrated into the system in the short term or replaced by the budget system in the contract 
management system immediately or over the longer term.  This will need to be determined as we 
review solutions going forward. 

 

25. To what level will creation of contracts be automated (e.g., more frequently selecting a contract 
template from a library and modifying it vs selecting contract components from a “palette” and 
incorporating them into a new contract “on the fly?”  
 
OPM Response: We are looking for the system to make it easier to put contracts together through 
creating a library of templates and contract terms.  Overall, we would seek to determine the costs 
and benefits of implementing more sophisticated document creation tools. 

 

26. Approximately how many different contract templates are currently maintained by the agencies in the 
scope of the RFI?  
 
OPM Response: There is one “Part II” template for statewide boilerplate language.  In addition, 
there are approximately 250-300 “Part I” program specific templates across the 10 POS agencies. 
 

27. Will all access to the OPM/POS contracting solution be via authenticated users, or can anonymous 
users view content here as well?  
 
OPM Response:  There would be authenticated users, but the ability of others to have view only 
access would have to be determined.   
 

28. Is there a standard workflow or Business Process Management (BPM) tool currently in use at the 
State of Connecticut, and is it the preferred tool for this solution (Appendix 1, Section C)?  
 
OPM Response: There is no standard BPM tool in use.  Both SharePoint and IBM FileNet have 
been used for the development of workflow applications. 

 

29. Is there a standard electronic signature (e-sig) tool currently in use at the State of Connecticut, and is 
it the preferred tool for this solution, or does evaluation and purchase of e-sig tool need to be part of 
this scope of work (Appendix 1, Section E)?  
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OPM Response:  We do not believe that a standard tool is in place.  We are seeking, as part of an 
overall view of potential solutions, what they offer in this regard. 

 
30. Do both internal (state agency) and external (provider) users need to be able to electronically sign 

documents (Appendix 1, Section E)?  
 
OPM Response:  That is a goal. 

 
 

31. To what degree is automated scanning (of documents received in hard copy, for example) 
envisioned to be part of the solution? At OPM, at agencies, both, or other (Appendix 1, Section E)? 
 

OPM Response: This is a question for the vendors to address as they present their solution and its 
capabilities.   

 
32. To what degree is the cross-posting of content to BizNet expected to be automated (Appendix 1, 

Section E)?  
 

OPM Response: This is a question for the vendors to address as they present their solution and its capabilities.   
 

33. Please clarify requirement “integrate with the CORE Purchase 
Order/Voucher process as efficiently as possible.” (Appendix 1, Section F)   

 
OPM Response:  Core will have the capability to extract the information from the database to create 
the purchase order without having to reenter the same information. 

 
 

34.  Please clarify the requirements for links to PO and payment information to be“linked” to CORE from 
the Contract Management System (Appendix 1, Section).  

 
OPM Response:  We envision that these would be live links to view the information in CORE.  For 
example, if a provider wants to know what check number was used to pay them, they would click on 
a link and the display of the check number would be listed. 
  

35. Is there any requirement for “delegation” of tasks in workflows? (e.g., if an approver is on vacation, 
can he/she re-route process tasks automatically, or can another user intervene to move the approval 
process along) (Appendix 1, Section H)?  

 

OPM Response: This is a question for the vendors to address as they present their solution and its capabilities.   
 

36. Is there any requirement for approvers to be able to approve workflow steps (Appendix 1, Section H)?  
 

OPM Response:  Not exactly clear on question, but who would be designated to approve certain 
actions would have to be established for each agency.  We would want to see how proposed 
solutions would handle these designations and work flows. 

 
 

37. Please describe any integration requirements with EARS (Appendix 1, Section I).  
 

OPM Response: Such requirements would depend on their ability to add value to the business 
processes involved.  
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38. Please describe any automation requirements around Bidders’ Conferences (Appendix 2, Section C).  
 

OPM Response: See RFI and General Response. These are questions and issues for the vendors to 
describe as they present their solution and its capabilities.  The contract management system would 
contain those components that add value to the process and make it more efficient and 
accountable.  

 

39. To what degree do award decision criteria need to be captured, memorialized, and analyzed 
(Appendix 2, Section C)?  

 

OPM Response: See RFI and General Response. These are questions and issues for the vendors to 
describe as they present their solution and its capabilities.  The contract management system would 
contain those components that add value to the process and make it more efficient and 
accountable.  

 
40. Is there a desired end platform (hosted, on premise, SAAS)?  

 

OPM Response: This is an issue for vendors to address as they present their proposed solutions and 
approaches.   
 

41. What are the data migration requirements? All the existing spreadsheets? If so, how many currently 
exist? Any other systems?  

 

OPM Response: See RFI and General Response. 
 

42. Are there any financial systems other than CORE CT? Would you be looking to replace financial 
functionality associated with this new system?  

 
OPM Response:  Much of the POS contract reporting around individual contract budgets and 
performance reporting is done outside Core-CT and this may continue to be the case, depending 
upon the solution ultimately selected. 

 

43. Are there any specific security requirements that we should take into account (HIPAA, etc.)? 
 

 OPM Response:  While the contracting process itself does not contain much HIPAA and other types   
of confidential data, there will be security requirements appropriate to the system and the data 
involved. 

 

44. Are there specific concerns with the Current CORE CT around budget monitoring / performance/ 
financial reporting?  

 
OPM Response: No.  Much of the POS contract reporting around individual contract budgets and 
performance reporting is done outside Core-CT. 

 

45. Are you looking for the BI solution to do the budget/financial/performance reporting or do you expect 
it to come from the current CORE CT system?  

 
OPM Response: Much of the POS contract reporting around individual contract budgets and 
performance reporting is done outside Core-CT and this may continue to be the case, depending 
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upon the solution ultimately selected.  We are seeking responses that address the reporting 
capabilities of their proposed solution. 
 

46. Do you want the new solution to support the generation of the UFR-type financials? (sections A/B)  
 

OPM Response:  Not clear regarding question, but see RFI and General Response. 
 
47. Would you like “bridge applications” that will interface with the items noted in Activity section?  
 

OPM Response: Not clear regarding question, but see RFI and General Response. 
 

48. Are you seeking encumbrance accounting/cost allocation capabilities (i.e. reporting) as a part of the 
response? (Please see Activity Section H – Budget Monitoring) please provide additional clarification 
around the requirements.   

 

OPM Response: See RFI and General Response.  Also, many of these questions are for vendors to 
address when presenting their solution and its capabilities. 

 
 

49. Are there specific concerns or items we should be aware of when developing a bridge application with 
the accounting system?  

 

OPM Response:  No. Please see RFI and General Response. 
 

50. Could “templates” be considered eForms? If so, how many eForms in total? Per agency? Per 
Process? If not, please explain templates.  Each agency has it’s own “Part 1” of the contract.  Part 2 
is the same across the agencies.  There is also an excel workbook which is customized by agency.  
We need a better understanding of what you mean by eforms?   
 

OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response 
 

51. Elaborate on "Reporting on results and costs related to POS contracts?" Types of reports? Portal? 
Business Decisions based from a report(s)? 

 

OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response 
 

52. When discussing contracts (Part I and II) is the need to build a common or like processes to which 
then build individualized process further down the pipe for each agency? For example, a main 
process that starts the engagement, then depending on contract parameters, the process could 
take different directions, tasks, and end-points?   

a. I assume building contract "packets" with all the pertinent information surrounding that 
contract need to be kept together and routed accordingly? 

b. I assume any documentation changes need to be tracked and versioned accordingly for 
audit and roll-back purposes?  
 

OPM Response:  These are questions and issues for the vendors to address as they present their 
solution and its capabilities.   
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53. Does each agency (or is the objective to) create front-end process consistency among the program 

unit and central contracts unit, then transitioning contract process to the fiscal/budget office for 
further and final processing?   

a. Meanwhile, all contract data is readily available at any point in the process, to any party 
with access for viewing, research, status update, etc. purposes?    
 

OPM Response: See RFI and General Response.  This is also a question for the vendors to address as 
they present their solution and its capabilities.   

 
54. Once an agency process has split from the general front-end process, the ability to define and force 

specific processes and tasks related to specific agency and contract type is a goal? (ie All agencies 
and contracts are initially processed through a routing and information gathering-type process. 
Then depending on agency, contract type, and contract requirement those contracts are 
accordingly routed through defined sub-processes with different requirements.)   

 
OPM Response: See RFI and General Response.  This is also a question for the vendors to address as 
they present their solution and its capabilities.   

 
55. Would the same process be used across multiple agencies? For example, the RFP Process (pages 

12-14) would be repeatable across multiple agencies? Perhaps with some variance, special 
steps/tasks etc. to complete the process?   

 
OPM Response:  We would seek to standardize the processes across State agencies allowing 
customization only to meet legitimate business or legal requirements of an agency. 

 
56. Do parties need the ability to look-up, track and provide a status of a certain transaction or 

contract in process or completed through the process?   
 
OPM Response:  Generally, yes. 

 
57. Explain the process to score RFPs? Does the contract management system need to integrate with a 

scoring system(s)? Does a custom system need to be written in conjunction with the contract 
management system?  

 
OPM Response: The contract management system would contain those components that add value 
to the process and make it more efficient and accountable. This type of customization, as needed, 
may or may not add sufficient value. 
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Questions Section B-I (Section 3 in RFI): 
 

 

B. Internal Agency Contract/Funding Approval and OPM approval – 
 

58. Initiating Requests – Number of requests per Day? Week? Month? Year?   
 

OPM Response:  In regard to POS health and human service contracts and amendments, up to 1,000 
requests can be submitted each year. 

 
59. eForms – Number of forms? Number of data points on each form (what do you want to capture)? 

Number of form variations?   
 

OPM Response:  In regard to POS health and human service contracts and amendments, there are 
three request forms (depending if for a new contract or amendment), with a number of data points 
(est. 15-20). 

 
60. Date Stamping – Does each form need to be date and time stamped? Do we need to capture date 

and time as a searchable index? Can the eForm date, date created, date submitted, etc be used for 
this purpose?  

 
OPM Response:  Date stamping would be required as would the capability to establish reports as to 
actions taken and pending and associated dates. 

 
61. Ability to attach documents and build document/contract “packets”? How many documents in 

typical packet? How many documents/packets are processed per day, week, month, year?  
 

OPM Response:  Relatively few requests contain attachments, but capability will be required. 
 
62. Establishing an approval process – In general, explain the typical approval process? Number of 

queues? Number of users?   
 

OPM Response:  State agencies initiate approval process, with requests sent to OPM Budget Division 
and then to OPM’s Executive Financial Officer for final action.  Between the agencies and OPM, there 
are about 100-150 users. 

 
63. Allow OPM Finance to send approval status to agency Contract Unit and record approval in the 

contract file. Please elaborate.   
 

OPM Response:  System sends e-mail to agency requesters re OPM action.  Attorney General needs 
copy of e-mail when reviewing and signing contracts.  Better solution likely exists. 
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C. RFP Process (when used) - This involves the competitive solicitation and selection process for services. 
 

64. Maintain Library of RFP Templates – Do these need to be eForms? If so, how many templates or 
eForms to create? Number of data points on each form (what do you want to capture)? Number 
of form variations? 

65. Ability to extract all relevant documents by users? 
66. Explain the Completed RFP Submission Process. 
67. Store List of Advertising Sources for posting? 
68. Templated (eForm) Evaluation Plan and Scoring Sheet – How many forms is this? Data points per 

form? Variations? 
69. Scoring Sheet Requirements?  
70. Bidder Question Submission Process? Systems must disseminate and deliver question and answers 

to all bidders? And insert this into the contract file? Elaborate. 
71. Process to securely send completed RFPs to a provider? 
72. System must allow access to RFP bids required forms for download? 
73. RFP Scoring Requirements? 
74. Web-Based Communication with Bidders? 
75.  Automatic and electronic sending of Award and Non-Award letters to Provider and attach a copy 

to the Provider file and Contract File. 
76. Ability to connect RFP information as part of the development process? Please elaborate. 

 
OPM Response to Questions 64 to 76:  See RFI and General Response.  Also, many of these 
questions are for vendors to address when presenting their solution and its capabilities. 

 
 
 
D. Contract Negotiations/Language‐Budget (Renewals, amendments‐if no RFP; post RFP)  

 
77. Accessible Library of Contract parts and terms that can be filled-in, updated, and completed by 

agency staff. Explain vision of the Library. 
78. Negotiations Process/System – including communications, business flow, all web-based with 

alerts, queues, and reports. All versioned controlled. What kind of reports? Please elaborate. 
What business questions or decisions will the reports help determine or answer? 

79. Activity Reports. User reports and audit trails? System events reports and audit trails? 
80. Workflow – routing of Budget draft to provider? Provider allowed to modify or complete the 

relevant portions of the Budget documents. System triggers completed Budget Doc and notifies 
agency. Budgets to be stored, accessed and updated annually. 

 
OPM Response to Questions 77 to 80:  See RFI and General Response.  Also, many of these 
questions are for vendors to address when presenting their solution and its capabilities. 
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E. Contract Assembly, Execution and Distribution; Amendments, Renewals, or post‐RFP 

 
81. Contract Packet Building Process/Workflow – Add, modify, delete, etc. items so contracts contain 

the proper items and documentation? Queues and Alerts when items are sitting too long? 
82. Activity Reports? Requirements? User and System Reports? Business decisions being answered to 

make decisions based off of the reports? 
83. Agency and State-Wide Forms? How many forms? eForms? Date points? Form variations? 
84. Contract Generation and Approval Process/Workflow 

a. Electronic Signatures – Compliance requirements? 
b. Comments/Notes section, Annotations, etc.? 

 
OPM Response to Questions 81 to 84:  See RFI and General Response.  Also, many of these 
questions are for vendors to address when presenting their solution and its capabilities. 

 
F. Establishing the Contract in Core‐CT  
 

85. Link to CORE/CT with Contract Management Systems – easy navigation between both systems. Additional 
integration? Information sharing, updating, communication between the two systems?  

i. Must support CORE Contract Approval Process – How? 
ii. Must Integrate with CORE? How? 

iii. Elaborate on the relationship between the Contract Management System and 
CORE? Goals? Outcome? 
 

OPM Response to Questions:   See RFI and General Response as well as answers to questions 33 
and 34. 
 

G. Fiscal and Programmatic Monitoring; Payments 
 

86. Generally the same as A-F above: web-based, workflow, date stamping, version controls, 
communication of changes, and create a warning when budget overages require a budget 
adjustment.  Any special items for this process? 

 
OPM Response to Question:  See RFI and General Response.  Also, many of these questions are for 
vendors to address when presenting their solution and its capabilities. 

 
H. Budget Revisions 
 

87. Generally the same as A-G above: web-based, workflow, date stamping, version controls, 
communication of changes, etc. The reporting aspect of this process seems to be more 
programmed and definitive. Perhaps regulatory in nature? Any special items for this process? 

 
OPM Response to Questions:  See RFI and General Response.  Also, many of these questions are 
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for vendors to address when presenting their solution and its capabilities. 
 

I. Year‐End Reports and Close‐out 
 

88. Same as H. above. Uploading of audits on contract management system where no SSA or FSA are 
required. 

89. Describe SSA and FSA. 
90. Any special items for this process? 

 
OPM Response to Questions 88 to 90:  See RFI and General Response.  Also, many of these questions 
are for vendors to address when presenting their solution and its capabilities. 

 

 
GENERAL 
 

91. Please provide approximate numbers of users (internal and external) 
 

 OPM Response: Estimate up to 2,000 between state agencies and private providers 
 

92. To what degree can historical and in-process contracts be managed in legacy systems/data stores, solution?  
 

OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response. 
 

93. Please define PSA (Appendix 1, Section B).  
 

OPM Response: Personal Service Agreements with consultants and other firms or companies. 
 

94. What is the application platform and database system (and version of each) of CORE/CT (Appendix 
1, Section F)?  

 

OPM Response: PeopleSoft Portal 9.1 with PeopleTools 8.52.21; PeopleSoft Financials; 9.1 with 
PeopleTools 8.52.21 and oracle database 11GR2 (11.2.0.4); PeopleSoft HRMS 9.1 with PeopleTools 
8.52.13 and oracle database 11GR2 (11.2.0.4); PeopleSoft EPM 9.1 with PeopleTools 8.52.13 and oracle 
database 11GR2 (11.2.0.4); and Oracle BIApps 11.1.1.7.1 with oracle database 11GR2 (11.2.0.4) 

 
95. Number of system users? OPM Response:  Estimate up to 2,000 between state agencies and   

private providers 
i. View only users?  

ii. Workflow users 
iii. Outside users?  
iv. Provider access users?  
v. Public users 

vi. Users per Agency?  
vii. Audit Users?  

*Any kind of break-down with regards to user and how it will affect licensing? 
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OPM Response:  There are approximately 800 providers and 1,500 POS contracts. There are 
approximately 10-20 users per State agency. In addition, see RFI and General Response.  Also, 
many of these questions are for vendors to address when presenting their solution and its 
capabilities. 
 

96. Elaborate on existing systems mentioned in RFI… CORE-CT, State Financial Management and State 
HR Systems.    

 
OPM Response:  Core-CT is the State’s enterprise (ERP) financial management and human 
resources/payroll system. 

 
97. Please describe just a few of the "efficiency goals" and "burdensome processes" that exist today 

to help evaluate and establish pain points and thus leading to a more effective solution(s).  
 

OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response 
 

98. Describe your vision of the system “automation” and ultimately the vision regarding 
standardization and interconnected processed between agencies.  

 
OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response.  This is also a question for the vendors to 
address as they present solution and its capabilities.   

 

99. In general, describe the relationship(s) between the 10 contracting agencies, their responsibilities, 
and their communication with other agencies. Are all connected to each other? Are certain 
processes connected among a few? Does each agency share common data?  

 
OPM Response:  See RFI and General Response.   

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 


